
Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 0 - 2 1





1

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

Contents
Page No. 

Board of Directors .................................................................. 03

Directors’ Report .................................................................... 04

Auditors’ Report ..................................................................... 14

Financial Statements ............................................................... 22

Sify_INFINIT_2021.indd   1 30-08-2021   12:35:14



2

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

(THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

Sify_INFINIT_2021.indd   2 30-08-2021   12:35:14



Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

3

C R Rao
Director

Raju Vegesna
Director

Vegesna Bala Saraswathi
Director

Board of Directors Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

V Ramanujan
Chief Financial Officer

D J Poornasandar
Company Secretary

Registered Office
2nd Floor, TIDEL Park
4, Rajiv Gandhi Salai
Taramani, Chennai 600 113 

Bankers
State Bank of India
Axis Bank Ltd
HDFC Bank Ltd
Yes Bank Ltd
Standard Chartered Bank

Statutory Auditors
ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Chennai

Sify_INFINIT_2021.indd   3 30-08-2021   12:35:14



4

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors present the Fourth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of 
Your Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

  The Company has executed a Business Transfer agreement dated January 28, 2021 with  
M/s Sify Technologies Limited, the Holding Company, for acquiring its Data Center Business from 
the Appointed Date of April 1, 2020 to the Company.  However, the transfer of Business was 
made effective February 1, 2021. Pursuant to this transfer of Business, the Company has been 
generating revenue from Data Center Business. The Financial Highlights are as below:

   ` in lakhs 

Financial Highlights 

Details 2020-21 2019-20

Income from operations 56,287 -

Other Income 250 23

Profit Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (PBITDA) 23,092 (20)

Depreciation and Amortization 13,017 -

Interest Expense (Net) 2,829  (23)

Profit Before Tax 7,246 3

Profit After Tax 7,890 1

  During the year, Your Company acquired Data Center business from its Holding Company  
M/s Sify Technologies Limited vide Business Transfer Agreement dated January 28, 2021 which 
is effective from April 01, 2020. Hence the previous year figures are not comparable. The Data 
Center Business was carried on by the Holding Company for more than 20 years which will 
henceforth be carried on by Your Company. 

 2. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

  No material changes and commitments have occurred affecting the financial position of the 
Company after March 31, 2021 till the date of this Report. 

3. DIVIDEND 

  Your Directors consider it appropriate to conserve the resources for expansion of business. Hence, 
your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year 2020-21.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

  The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves during the period under review. 

5. BUSINESS STRATEGY & REVIEW 

  A combination of factors is aiding the growth of business, which include the Government’s push 
for domiciling data, the explosive surge in data consumption and hence its storage, the entry 
of hyperscale players into the Indian geography, the growing trend of offshoring Data Center by 
businesses for whom IT is not core. 

Sify_INFINIT_2021.indd   4 30-08-2021   12:35:14



5

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

  In the last Financial Year, under the flag of this new Subsidiary, Your Company has invested in 
acquisition of new land and commissioning of fresh Data Center spaces to augment the existing 
capacity. At the end of the financial year, SISL has commissioned a total capacity of 72MW IT 
Power. 

  Your Company is pursuing an aggressive agenda of building out hyperscale capacities in the 
traditional financial hubs that enjoy multiple advantages of stable power, focused administration 
and amiable ecosystem while implementing a hub and spoke model of building smaller capability 
Data Center close to line of sight in the other metros. The long-term plan is to enable a network 
of Data Center within access of every possible business concentration geographically.

  Your Company pursues a POD architecture of building Data Centers that can be independently 
commissioned floor and power-wise. This enables quicker commissioning of capacity and the 
ability to scale as the market demands. Your Company’s pursuit of customers is a combination 
of those seeking larger footprint of Data Center colocation space and the ability to host on the 
cloud. The market strategy is to promote a comprehensive ecosystem of Data Center connected 
by a proven network. Your Company also pursues hyperscale customers who define their capacity 
demand beforehand and then engage Your Company to commission it in the geography of their 
choice.

  5.1 OUTLOOK

   India will see an addition of at least 28 large hyper scale Data Centers over the next three 
years, a new report, jointly penned by Real Estate Services Company Anarock, and Mace, 
a London-based Consultancy and Construction Company, has said.

   In India, the demand for hyper scale Data Centers has shot up in the last two years as 
more businesses are moving their IT infrastructure to the cloud, especially driven by 
increasing demand for app-based services and OTT platforms.

  Gartner, sees an increase in data center capacity as a path to economic development. 
More data centers pave the path for hyperscalers like Google, Microsoft, Amazon, and 
other large providers to invest in India. This move will then encourage investments in 
India’s Tier-2 cities as well. Capabilities will be built within India and create a positive 
impact on job creation.”

  According to IDC the government’s initiative arrives at an opportune time, as megatrends 
such as the growing use of the internet of things (IoT), artificial intelligence (AI), machine 
learning (ML), big data and analytics sweep the industry. Compute and storage would 
become easily accessible to organizations investing in these megatrends with more data 
centers coming in.

  According to the Mordoor Intelligence Report market summary, the India data center 
market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 8 % over the forecast period 2021 to 2026. 
The rapid adoption of cloud-based business operations has encouraged businesses to 
acquire data management capacities to handle huge volumes of data that are being 
generated. Increased proliferation of online shopping due to the availability of user-
friendly interfaces, high-speed internet, and smart devices such as smartphones, tablets, 
laptops, etc. is expected to drive the market in the future.

  The growing cloud computing in India, increasing internet penetration, government 
regulations for data generated in the country, and increasing investment by foreign 
players are some of the major factors driving the demand for data centers in the country. 
The digital expansion of end-user industries in the country and initiatives by state 
governments to attract the construction of data centers in their states for economic 
growth will offer a massive opportunity to the studied market vendors over the forecast 
period.

  With more than 669 million Internet users presently and forecast to be USD5 trillion 
economy by 2024, India is estimated to generate massive data at explosive rates in 
the coming years. The mass adoption of smartphones, and smart devices by end-users, 

Sify_INFINIT_2021.indd   5 30-08-2021   12:35:14



6

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

adoption of cloud computing, big data, AI, etc. by Indian enterprises, an increasing 
number of interconnected devices due to IoT is further supporting this growth. The 
country has some of the largest e-commerce and telecom industry. And with a population 
projected to top 1.4 billion over the next five years, with only around +100 third-party 
data centers across the country, the number of hyperscale, need for the data center is 
massive in India.

  The country is also witnessing the rising shift of the economy to a consumption-based 
model by bringing the core technologies into one stack. Shift towards digital transactions 
to achieve RBI and Government’s less cash objective and cloud penetration across all 
these technologies is growing. Therefore, the need for high-quality experience is driving 
all the top global Cloud vendors into having a presence in India. The companies in the 
country scrambling to meet that growing demand include hyperscale and colocation 
providers such as Bridge Data Centers, and STT GDC, as well as giant public cloud players 
such as Google Cloud, Amazon Web Services, Alibaba Cloud, Microsoft Azure, and Oracle.

  Also, the major data center hubs in Asia, like Singapore, are imposing new restrictions 
and limits on locations for data centers on the island, which is becoming more challenging 
for providers; hence they are shifting their focus to India

 

   https://www.visualcapitalist.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/data-generated-each-
day-full.html)

  5.2 Technology Trends 

   Some of the critical Data Center trends dictating the line of growth in Data Centers 
globally are as follows. Giving its cost benefits and geographical relevance, India is 
mirroring a number of these trends.

   •	 Data Center Spending picks up again. Will hit $237 Billion

    The global data center systems market will reach $237 billion in 2021, representing 
an increase of more than 7 percent year over year, according to IT research 
firm Gartner’s most recent IT spending forecast. The “temporary pause” button 
enterprises hit on data center spending will go away by the end of 2021, Gartner 
said, with data center infrastructure spending expected to grow year over year 
through 2024.
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  •	 Increase In Automation and Robotics Deployments

   The global pandemic has accelerated the need to make data center operations less 
reliant on human intervention aided by the influx of innovation around software 
automation and artificial intelligence. The data center industry is seeing the benefit 
of leveraging more intelligent, autonomous systems for simple tasks and distributed 
environments designed to increase capabilities.

  •	 5G finally become real

   Another element impacting the need for edge data centers, and supporting the 
growth of the IoT, will be the realization of 5G technology. Though many carriers 
have touted 5G capability, many have still failed to see its speed or reliability in 
the real world. However, as data centers drove industries and businesses to use 
data differently, the growth of edge computing will also drive faster demand for 5G 
technologies and the installation of nodes to support that kind of network.

  •	 Private Equity pumps more money into Data Centers

   From private equity firms acquiring data center companies to investing billions to 
help data center providers scale, there’s no doubt that global investment firms will 
continue to double down on the market in 2021. Private equity has been fueling 
data center providers growth objectives around scale and expanding global reach 
for years. For example, in 2019, private equity accounted for 80 percent of all data 
center acquisitions.

  •	 Enterprises pick Cloud Infrastructure Services over Data Center Products

   Enterprises spent $130 billion on cloud infrastructure services globally in 2020. 
Enterprise spending on cloud infrastructure services reached nearly $130 billion in 
2020, representing an increase of 35% annually, according to new data from Synergy 
Research Group. Enterprise spending on owned data center hardware and software 
fell 6 percent year over year to $89 billion.

  •	 Green Data Centers; Sustainability taking center stage

   Customers, stakeholders, investors and even world leaders are increasingly 
demanding accountability on climate impact, by creating a compelling business 
incentive to embrace sustainability. Innovation in energy efficiency, such as 
with liquid cooling, as well as renewable power is being driven by the industry’s 
largest customers like AWS, Google, Facebook and Microsoft. In 2021, data center 
sustainability has become front and center for enterprise customers which is raising 
the bar for the entire industry. With the digital economy taking shape, investors are 
also part of the green energy revolution as they seek to build greener IT portfolios.

  •	 All Eyes on the Edge

   With people flocking towards remote working and education, along with an influx of 
smart technologies inside offices and remote locations – the next data center frontier 
is at the edge. There is significant demand for edge computing in 2021 fueled by 
various technologies including AI, Internet of Things (IoT) and the emergence of 5G. 
Gartner predicts that by 2025, 75 % of enterprise-generated data will be created 
and processed outside a centralized data center or cloud. This massive shift puts 
more emphasis on ensuring a secure, effective and reliable solution inside an edge 
data centers no matter what size.

  Covid impact and Company readiness

  Covid impact

  According to a report by Deloitte, The COVID-19 pandemic has brought about 
changes in how companies operate during a crisis. Companies have to revise their 
operating model to incorporate the following:
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  • Enhanced health and safety provisions;

  • Increased support for mobile and remote working;

  • Further requirements to automate business processes and functions;

  • Improvements in cybersecurity arrangements;

  • Migration to pay-per-use commercial models.

  These changes are reliant on flexible IT architectures and changes to vendor commercial 
arrangements. A well-designed and configured cloud service can be the ideal option for a 
company’s enterprise IT requirements, providing a cost-effective solution with enhanced 
flexibility and security.

  Company readiness

  Your Company has a robust Business Continuity Process in place to mitigate any disaster 
that could impact the data facilities and their security. Complete with a remotely 
accessible dashboard, an onsite bench to support and security measures in place, Your 
Company did not experience any major downtime during the Covid pandemic to date. 
Late in 2020, Your Company also aligned Environmental, Health and Safety measures to 
further strengthen its people and process measures. Through this pandemic, designated 
personnel of clients had complete remote access to their data and also access to a 
24x7x365 help center to answer any queries. 

6. MAJOR CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS

 During the year under review, M/s Sify Technologies Limited, the Holding Company has transferred 
its Data Center Business to the Company for a consideration of ` 500 crores through a Business 
Transfer Agreement executed on January 28, 2021 between the Holding Company and the 
Company, which is effective from April 01, 2020.

 For this purpose, the Company has issued and allotted 50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- 
aggregating to ` 500 crores towards consideration.

7. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE EVALUATION BY THE BOARD

  The Board of Directors of your Company, basis the procedures (through questionnaires, One to 
One Meetings and discussion with all the stakeholders), have evaluated its own performance and 
Individual Directors.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

  a) Directors:

   During the year under review M/s Sify Technologies Limited, Holding Company, has withdrawn 
the Nomination given and consequent to that, the following Directors have ceased to be the 
Directors of the Company. 

   1. Mr Ananda Raju Vegesna

   2. Mr M P Vijay Kumar

   During the year under review, M/s Sify Technologies Limited, Holding Company, has 
nominated the following persons as Additional Directors on the Board of the Company. 

   1. Mr Vegesna Ananta Koti Raju

   2. Ms Vegesna Bala Saraswathi

  As per Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 they shall hold office upto the date of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for election as Directors by the shareholders 
at the Annual General Meeting. 
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  The above appointment is recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company and 
hence, the requirement of Deposit of ` 1,00,000/- is not applicable. 

  b) Retirement by rotation

  Mr C R Rao, Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible, offers himself for reappointment. Your Directors recommend his re-appointment. 

  Mr C R Rao, Director of the Company has been elevated as an Executive Director of the 
Company which is subject to the approval of Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 

  c) Woman Director 

  Appointment of Ms Vegesna Bala Saraswathi, is also in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 149 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 for appointment of Woman Director. 

  d) Key Managerial Personnel

  During the year under review, Mr S Ganesh, Chief Financial Officer of the Company had 
been replaced by Mr V Ramanujan, who was appointed as the Chief Financial officer of the 
Company.

  During the year under review, Mr V Ramanujan, Company Secretary of the Company had 
been replaced by Mr D J Poornasandar, who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the 
Company.

  As per the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 
following Officers of the Company were designated as Whole-Time Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company:

   Mr C R Rao Executive Director

   Mr V Ramanujan Chief Financial Officer

   Mr D J Poornasandar  Company Secretary

 9. DEPOSITS

  Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

10. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

  Your Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses 
in the design or operation were observed.

11. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

  Your Directors state:

  i)  that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

  ii)  that they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit or 
loss of the Company for that period;
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  iii)  that they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

  iv) that they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

  v)  that they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

12. BOARD MEETINGS

  During the period under review, the Board of Directors of Your Company met 4 times. The dates 
of meetings are May 5, 2020, July 28, 2020, October 23, 2020 and January 28, 2021.

13. COMMITTEES

  Pursuant to the provisions of rule 6 of the companies (Meeting of Board and its Power) Rules, 
2014 and rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the 
provision of section 177 and 178 of the companies Act, 2013 pertaining to constitution of Audit 
Committee and Nomination and remuneration committee are not applicable to the Company.

 14. AUDITORS

 i) STATUTORY AUDITORS

  a. Name and Address 

   M/s ASA & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, No 39, 1st Main Road, R A Puram, Chennai 
600028.

  In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the members had appointed them as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five years at the First Annual General 
Meeting held on July 6, 2018 to hold office from the conclusion of that Annual General 
Meeting until the conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in 2023. 

  The Company has received a letter from M/s ASA & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants 
resigning from the office of Statutory Auditors due to other preoccupations, resulting into 
a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by Section 
139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013. Casual vacancy caused by the resignation of Auditors 
can only be filled up by the Company in a General Meeting. M/s ASA & Associates LLP are 
also the Auditors of the Holding Company M/s Sify Technologies Limited, where they are 
retiring as the Auditors on completion of the maximum statutory term of 10 years of office 
as the Statutory Auditors.

  The Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 7, 2021, considered and recommended 
to the shareholders, the appointment of M/s Manohar Chowdhary & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, Chennai (Firm Regn. No. 001997S) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
hold office as such from the conclusion of this 4th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion 
of the 9th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2026. 

  The Company has received a certificate of eligibility from M/s Manohar Chowdhary & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, confirming that they are eligible to be appointed under 
Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are not disqualified under the Act, 
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and rules and regulations made thereunder.

ii. COST AUDITOR

 The provision of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

 15. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

  During the year, Your Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Sify_INFINIT_2021.indd   10 30-08-2021   12:35:15



11

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

 16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

  Particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties 
referred to in Sub-section 1 of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 
2020-21 are listed below: 

  Holding Company: 
  ` Lakhs

Sify Technologies Limited March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Amount of transaction:

Lease rentals to holding company 1,379 -

Lease rentals Deposit 345 -

Receipt of services 1,972 20

Rendering of services 303 -

Shares issued pursuant to BTA 50,000 -

Advances received on account of BTA 2,300 -

Revenue transfers on account of BTA 8,345 -

Expenses transfers on account of BTA 8,245 -

Advances repaid 20 -

Amount of outstanding balances:

Trade payable 1,379 20

Advances payable - 20

Amounts receivable on account of BTA 12,963 -

Trade receivable 303 -

  Fellow Subsidiaries companies:

Sify Digital Services Limited March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Rendering of services 574 -

Revenue transfers on account of BTA 3,256 -

Expenses transfers on account of BTA 1,039 -

Amounts received on behalf of the company 187 -

Amount of outstanding balances:

Amounts Payable on account of BTA 2,404 -

Trade receivable 574 -

 17.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO

  i. Conservation of Energy:

   Data Centers are energy intensive and Sify has been working continuously to ensure that we 
operate in the most energy efficient manner. Across all our Data Centers in India, we have 
implemented comprehensive energy conservation and efficiency programs through Energy 
usage optimization which eradicates energy hot spots though UPS optimization, installation 
of power factor controllers and installation of precision air handling units and maintaining 
power utilization efficiency to improve effectiveness across all the Data Centres. 
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  ii. Technology Absorption:

   The Company has deployed latest technologies in its Data Center Business which has helped 
in improving the quality of its services and productivity of its resources. The Company’s 
operations do not require significant import of technology.

  iii. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

   Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo during the year were Nil. 

 18. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

  There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

19. ANNUAL RETURN

  As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an Annual Return in Form MGT-7 for 
the year ended March 31, 2021 is required to be placed in the website of the Company and web-
link of such Annual Return has to be disclosed in the Board’s Report. 

  Accordingly, Form MGT-7 approved by the Board has been displayed on the website of M/s Sify 
Technologies Limited, the Holding Company at www.sifytechnologies.com. 

20. RISK MANAGEMENT

  The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Risk Management Policy wherein all 
material risks faced by the Company are identified and assessed.

  Business risks are identified based on incident analysis and the environment in which the Company 
operates and the focus on Risk Management continues to be high.  The periodic assessment 
of business risk environment is carried out to identify significant risks to the achievement of 
business objectives of the Company. Key risks are reported and evaluated at appropriate forums 
and levels within the Company. The Risk Committee of the Company is responsible for assisting 
the Audit Committee with a full status of the risk assessment and management of the risks. Audit 
Committee and the Board also obtain periodical updates on identified risks, depending upon the 
nature, quantum and likely impact on the business.

21. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

  Your Company is compliant with the guidelines laid down by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Your 
Company affirms its consonance with the principles of the National Guidelines on Responsible 
Business Conduct (NGRBC).

  1.  Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity in a manner that is Ethical, 
Transparent and Accountable. 

  2. Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe. 

  3.  Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in 
their value chains. 

  4. Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all their stakeholders.

  5. Businesses should respect and promote human rights. 

  6. Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment.

  7.  Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a 
manner that is responsible and transparent. 

  8. Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development. 

  9.  Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner.
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22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

  Since the company does not have net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of 
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during immediately 
preceding Financial Year, the provision related to CSR under section 135 (1) of the Companies 
act, 2013 are not applicable.

23.  DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

  The Directors hereby state that there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, during the year under 
review. 

24. MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE COURT / TRIBUNAL

  There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

25. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

   We, the Directors take this opportunity to thank all Investors, Customers, Banks and Government 
Authorities for their continued support and also wish to place on record our appreciation of the 
valuable contribution made by the employees.

   For and on behalf of the Board

  Chennai  Raju Vegesna  C R Rao 
  May 14, 2021 Director Executive Director  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone 
financial statements of Sify Infinit Spaces Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 
on that date, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of 
the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together 
with the independence requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the key audit 
matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of Trade Receivables:
Why Significant
The collectability of the Company’s aged Trade 
Receivables and the valuation of allowance for 
impairment of Trade Receivables is a Key Audit 
Matter due to the judgement involved in assessing 
the recoverability. The Trade Receivable as at 
March 31, 2021 is ` 18,788 lakhs and Allowance for 
bad and doubtful debts charged in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 
2021 is ` 500 lakhs (including bad debts written 
off ` 5 lakhs).

How our audit addressed the matter

•  We evaluated and tested the Company’s 
processes for trade receivables, including the 
credit control, collection and provisioning 
processes.

•  We evaluated the management view point and 
estimates used to determine the Allowance 
for bad and doubtful debts.

•  We have reviewed the ageing, tested the 
validity of the receivables, tested that aged 
trade receivables were subsequently collected, 
the past payment and credit history of the 
customer, disputes (if any) with customers 
and based on discussion with the Company 
management (information and explanation 
provided by them) and evidences collected, we 
understood and evaluated the reason for delay 
in realisation of the receivable and possibility 
of realisation of the aged receivable.

•  Where there were indicators that trade 
receivables were unlikely to be collected, 
we assessed the adequacy of allowance for 
impairment of trade receivables.

•  We tested the sufficiency of the Allowance 
for bad and doubtful debts charged in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year 
ended March 31, 2021

Business Reorganisation:

Why Significant
As set out in note 36 of financial statement, 
Pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement 
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(‘BTA’) signed dated January 28, 2021 pursuant 
to board approval the Company acquired Data 
Center services business from its holding company 
Sify Technologies Limited with the appointed date 
being April 01, 2020. All the assets and liabilities 
relating to Data Center services business have 
been transferred at the book value from the 
appointed date of April 1, 2020. The consideration 
is settled by way of issue of equity shares at par 
value. The Board has approved the execution of 
business transfer agreement its holding company 
Sify Technologies Limited.

Business transfer involves risk of
-  Appropriate transfer of transactions recorded 

during April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 in 
the books of Sify Technology Limited to the 
Company.

-  Accuracy of data migration in the system and 
change management process during the period 
of migration

Matters discussed with those charged with 
governance [TCWG]: -

Discussion with TCWG focused on: -
a)  Basis of transfer of assets, liabilities, revenue 

and expenses across the Companies
b)  Process followed in IT system during the period 

of migration and during the year

How our audit addressed the matter
•  We evaluated and tested the Company’s 

processes followed for transfer of balances 
and transactions across the Companies.

•  We evaluated the management view point and 
estimates used to determine the allocation of 
common cost across the Companies.

•  We have evaluated the change management 
process adopted by the Company and data 
available with the company to ensure the 
changes are authorised and there is no impact 
on the financial statement of the Company.

Other Matters
Further, due to the second wave of spreading of 
COVID -19 across India, the State Government of 
Tamil Nadu announced a lockdown in the months of 
April 2021 and May 2021, which was extended with 
various restrictions across the India to contain the 
spread of the virus. This has resulted in restriction 
on physical visit to the client locations and the 
need for carrying out alternative audit procedures 
as per the Standards on Auditing prescribed by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

As a result of the above, certain portions of the 
audit was carried out based on remote access 
of the data as provided the management. This 

has been carried out based on the advisory 
on “Specific Considerations while conducting 
Distance Audit/ Remote Audit/ Online Audit under 
current Covid-19 situation” issued by the Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Board of ICAI. We have 
been represented by the management that the 
data provided for our audit purposes is correct, 
complete, reliable and are directly generated by 
the accounting system of the Company without 
any further manual modifications.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information; we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone 
Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
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Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In 
preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the standalone financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 
and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the standalone financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements 
in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 
of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. We also provide those charged 
with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate 

Sify_INFINIT_ACCOUNTS 2021.indd   16 30-08-2021   12:47:36



17

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited 

with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those 
charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.   As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based 
on our audit we report that:

 a)  We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 b)  In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

 c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account. 

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the Ind 
AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 e)  On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2021 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 f)  With respect to the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting.

 g)  With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our 
opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to 
us, there are no managerial remuneration 
is payable to its directors during the year is 
in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 of the Act.

 h)  With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

  i.  The Company has disclosed the impact 
of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its separate financial 
statements – Refer Note 20 (Contingent 
liabilities);

  ii.  The Company has made provision, as 
required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts 
– Refer to the Significant Accounting 
Policies in C 13 and Note 34 (a)

    (Derivative Financial instruments) 
attached to the separate financial 
statements; and

  iii.  there were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 009571N/N500006

D K Giridharan
 Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No: 028738
Date : May 14, 2021 UDIN: 21028738AAAABQ1235
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(i)  a)  The Company is maintaining proper 
records showing full particulars 
including quantitative details of fixed 
assets. The Company is in the process 
of integrating the situation details 
of fixed assets into the fixed asset 
records.

  b)  The Company has a program of 
verification to cover all the items of 
fixed assets in a phased manner which, 
in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to 
the program, certain fixed assets were 
physically verified by the management 
during the year. According to the 
information and explanations given 
to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification.

  c)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on 
the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company (including 
confirmations received from lenders 
with whom the immovable properties 
are mortgaged), the title deeds of 
immovable properties are not held 
in the name of the Company, as the 
properties have been transferred 
via business transfer agreement 
dated January 28, 2021 from Sify 
Technologies Limited. As explained 
to us, Registration of title deeds is in 
progress in respect of an immovable 
property acquired during the year 
aggregating ` 21,608 Lakhs.

(ii)  The inventory has been physically verified 
by the management during the year. In 
our opinion, the frequency of verification 
is reasonable. No material discrepancies 
were noticed on such physical verification.

(iii)  The Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other 
parties covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Act.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

Act, with respect to the investments 
made. The Company has not granted any 
loan accordingly, it’s not applicable.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any 
deposits from the public.

 (vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of 
account maintained by the Company in 
respect of services where, pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government of 
India, the maintenance of cost records 
has been prescribed under sub-section 
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act 
and are of the opinion that prima facie, 
the prescribed accounts and records have 
been made and maintained. We have not, 
however, made a detailed examination 
of the records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)  a)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, in our opinion, the 
Company is regular in depositing the 
undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance income-tax, Goods and 
Service Tax (GST), customs duty, 
excise duty, cess and other material 
statutory dues as applicable with the 
appropriate authorities.

   There were no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income 
Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Cess and other material statutory 
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 
for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable

  b)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us, there are no 
dues of income tax, sales-tax, service 
tax, customs duty, excise duty, value 
added tax and cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any 
dispute.

(viii)  According to the records of the Company 
examined by us and on the basis of 
information and explanations given to us, 
there has been no default in repayment 
of loans transferred to the Company from 
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Sify Technologies via business transfer 
agreement, the repayments have been 
done by Sify Technologies Limited.

 (ix)  During the year, the Company did not 
raise any money by way of public offer 
or further public offer (including debt 
instruments). In our opinion, and according 
to the information and explanations given 
to us, on an overall basis, the term loans 
transferred from Sify Technologies Limited 
via Business Transfer Agreement dated 
January 28, 2021 have been applied for the 
purposes for which they were obtained.

 (x)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers 
or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the course of our audit. 

(xi)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on 
our examination of the records of the 
Company, no managerial remuneration is 
payable to its directors.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is not a nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order 
is not applicable

(xiii)  According to the information and 
explanations given by the management, 
transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with section 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details 
have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements, as required by the 

applicable accounting standards. The 
provisions of sec 177 are not applicable 
to the company and accordingly reporting 
under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to 
section 177 of the Act is not applicable to 
the Company and hence not commented 
upon..

(xiv)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based 
on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not 
entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order 
is not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 009571N/N500006

D K Giridharan
 Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No: 028738
Date : May 14, 2021 UDIN: 21028738AAAABQ1235
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Sify Infinit Spaces 
Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

We have audited the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of Sify Infinit Limited 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on “the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. 
These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
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use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based 
on “ the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India”.

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 009571N/N500006

D K Giridharan
 Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No: 028738
Date : May 14, 2021 UDIN: 21028738AAAABQ1235
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

Note  
No. (D)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1  70,274  - 
 (b) Right-of-use Assets 3  24,387  - 
 (c) Capital work in progress  3,996  - 
 (d) Intangible assets  2  80  - 
 (e) Financial assets
  (i) Investments 4  17  - 
  (ii) Other financial assets 5  1,829  - 
 (f) Deferred Tax assets 28  3,284  - 
 (g) Other non-current assets 6  863  - 

 1,04,730  - 
(2) Current assets
 (a) Inventories 7  265  - 
 (b) Financial assets
  (i) Trade receivables 8  18,788  - 
  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9  1,223  515 
  (iii) Other financial assets 10  8,992  10 
 (c) Other current assets 11  323  * 

 29,591  525 
Total Assets  1,34,321  525 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 12  50,500  500 
(b) Other Equity 13  7,860  (16)

 58,360  484 
LIABILITIES
(1) Non - current liabilities
 (a) Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings & Lease liabilities 14  37,115  - 
 (b) Provisions 15  105  - 

 37,220  - 
(2) Current liabilities
 (a) Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 16  4,443  - 
  (ii) Trade payables 17
   Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  -  - 
    Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises  

and small enterprises  8,797  21 

  (iii) Other financial liabilities 18  22,706  20 
 (b) Other current liabilities 19  2,788  - 
 (c) Provisions 15  7  - 

 38,741  41 
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,34,321 525
* Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements (Refer notes C and D)
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
As per our report of even date attached.
for ASA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009571N/N500006
D K Giridharan C R Rao Raju Vegesna
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 028738
Chennai V Ramanujan D J Poornasandar
May 14, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

Note No. (D)
For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations 21  56,287  - 

Other income 22  250  23 

Total income  56,537  23 

Expenses

Cost of services rendered 23 A  21,732 - 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 B  959 -

Changes in inventories 23 C  (265) -

Employee benefits expense 24  1,999 -

Finance costs 25  4,725  * 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,2 and 3  13,017  -

Other expenses 26  7,124  20 

Total expenses  49,291  20 

Profit before tax  7,246  3 

Tax expense 28

 Current Tax  (2,640)  (1)

 Deferred Tax  3,284  (1)

Profit after tax  7,890  1 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  
in subsequent periods 

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability  31  (14) -  

Total other comprehensive income  (14)   -

Total comprehensive income for the Year  7,876  -

Earnings  per equity share (` 10 paid up) 29

Basic  1.56  0.02 

Diluted  1.56  0.02 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements (Refer notes C and D)
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit and loss
As per our report of even date attached.
for ASA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009571N/N500006
D K Giridharan C R Rao Raju Vegesna
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 028738
Chennai V Ramanujan D J Poornasandar
May 14, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021  
(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

For the  
year  ended  

March 31, 2021 

For the  
year  ended  

March 31, 2020
Profit before tax  7,246  3 
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 13,017  - 
Finance expenses (considered separately) 4,725  - 
Allowance for doubtful debts 500  - 
Provision for doubtful advances 1  - 
Unrealised foreign exchange fluctuation loss/(gain), net 93  - 
Interest income (considered separately)  (250)  (23)
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes  25,332  (20)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables - current  (6,107)  - 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (265)  - 
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets - current  (6,004)  - 
(Increase)/decrease in other  financial assets - non current  (589)  - 
(Increase)/decrease in other non current assets  149  - 
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets  282  (6)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables  (1,232)  20 
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities - current  2,755  - 
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities  (191)  - 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions - non current  9  - 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions - current  2  
Cash generated from operations  14,141  (6)
Tax (paid)/refund received  (1,257)  (2)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)  12,884  (8)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment  (17,482)  - 
Amount paid for acquisition of right of use assets  (197)  - 
Interest income received  157  23 
Net cash used in investing activities (B)  (17,522)  23 
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings  12,445  - 
Repayment of long-term borrowings  (8,210)  - 
Increase/(decrease) in short-term borrowings  1,783  - 
Increase/(decrease) of lease liabilities  972  - 
Interest paid  (4,741)  - 
Net cash used in financing activities (C)  2,249  - 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
during the year (A) + (B) + (C)  (2,389)  15 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  515  500 
Cash and cash equivalents acquired through BTA  2,924  - 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year# [Refer Note D (9)]  1,050  515 

# Cash and cash equivalents subject to lien [Refer Note D (9)] 243  - 
Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities  
[Refer Note D (27)]

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements [(Refer notes C and D)]
This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date
As per our report of even date attached.
for ASA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009571N/N500006
D K Giridharan C R Rao Raju Vegesna
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 028738
Chennai V Ramanujan D J Poornasandar
May 14, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Sify_INFINIT_ACCOUNTS 2021.indd   25 30-08-2021   12:47:37



26

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited 

A. COMPANY OVERVIEW

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited (‘Sify’ or ‘the Company’) 
is a Company domiciled in India. The address of the 
Company’s registered office is 2nd Floor, Tidel Park, 
4, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, Taramani, Chennai – 600113, 
India. The Company offers Data Center services. The 
Company was incorporated on Noveber 20, 2017. 

During the year under review, the Company 
acquired Data Center business from its holding 
company Sify Technologies Limited vide Business 
Transfer Agreement dated January 28, 2021 which 
is effective from April 01, 2020.

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Standalone financial statements of the 
Company have been prepared and presented 
in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical 
cost convention on accrual basis of accounting, 
except for certain financial instruments which 
are measured on fair value basis and Cash Flow 
Statement. GAAP comprises Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) as notified under Section 133 
of the Companies Act read together with relevant 
rules of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules 2016 to the extent 
applicable, pronouncements of regulatory bodies 
applicable to the Company and other provisions of 
the Act. Accounting policies have been consistently 
applied except where a newly issued accounting 
standard is initially adopted or a revision to 
existing accounting standards requires a change in 
the accounting policy hitherto in use. Management 
evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting 
standards on an on-going basis. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as 
current or non-current as per the company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set-out 
in note C (21). Based on the nature of products and 
services and the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realization in cash 
and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained 
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose 
of current and non-current classification of assets 
and liabilities. 

1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements comprising Balance 
Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of 
changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, together 
with notes for the year ended March 31, 2021 have 
been prepared in accordance with Ind AS duly 
approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting 
held on May 14, 2021.

2.  Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis except for the following:

•   Derivative financial instruments are measured 
at fair value

•   Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income are measured at fair 
value 

•   Financial instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss are measured at fair value.

•  Share-based payments

•   The defined benefit asset is recognized as the 
net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized 
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial 
losses, less unrecognized actuarial gains 
and the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation. 

•   In relation to lease prepayments, the initial 
fair value of the security deposit is estimated 
as the present value of the refundable amount, 
discounted using the market interest rates for 
similar instruments. The difference between 
the initial fair value and the refundable 
amount of the deposit is recognized as a Right 
of Use Asset.

The above items have been measured at fair value 
and the methods used to measure fair values are 
discussed further in Note C (19).

3.  New and amended standards

3A. Issued and effective

Ind AS 103 - Business Combination

Additional guidance on identifying business 
combination and definition of business have been 
inserted. These guidance’s include optional test to 
identify concentration of fair value, explanation 
on elements of business requiring assessment 
whether an acquired process is substantive. 
When the fair value is concentrated towards a 
single asset, the acquisition shall be accounted 
as an asset acquisition. Also, the amendment 
provides that for an acquisition to be considered 
as business, the assessment of input and processes 
would depend on stage of the entity being acquired 
and hence it is important to assess whether the 
acquired process is substantive to be qualified as 
business. In other cases, the acquisition shall be 
accounted as an asset acquisition.

Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

Amendments relating to uncertainty arising from 
interest rate benchmark reform and temporary 
exceptions from applying hedging requirements 
are given. These do not apply to the Company.

Ind AS 116 - Covid-19 related rent concessions

When there is no substantive change in the terms 
and conditions of the lease agreement except for 
concessions on rent payments due to covid-19, 
such concession shall not be treated as Lease 

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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Modification and disclosures required as per Ind AS 
116 and Ind AS 8 need not be given.

The entity has utilised this relaxation for the 
leases where concessions were provided.

3B. Issued and not effective

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”) through a notification, amended Schedule 
III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments 
revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III and are 
applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments 
relating to Division II which relate to companies 
whose financial statements are required to comply 
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

•  Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed 
under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly 
distinguished as current or non-current.

•  Certain additional disclosures in the statement 
of changes in equity such as changes in equity 
share capital due to prior period errors and 
restated balances at the beginning of the 
current reporting period.

•  Specified format for disclosure of shareholding 
of promoters.

•  Specified format for ageing schedule of 
trade receivables, trade payables, capital 
work-in-progress and intangible asset under 
development.

•  If a company has not used funds for the specific 
purpose for which it was borrowed from banks 
and financial institutions, then disclosure of 
details of where it has been used.

•  Specific disclosure under ‘additional 
regulatory requirement’ such as compliance 
with approved schemes of arrangements, 
compliance with number of layers of 
companies, title deeds of immovable 
property not held in name of company, loans 
and advances to promoters, directors, key 
managerial personnel (KMP) and related 
parties, details of benami property held etc

Statement of profit and loss:

•  Additional disclosures relating to Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed 
income and crypto or virtual currency specified 
under the head ‘additional information’ in the 
notes forming part of consolidated financial 
statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company 
will evaluate the same to give effect to them as 
required by law.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 relating to 
employee benefits during employment and post 

employment benefits received Presidential assent 
in September 2020. The Code has been published 
in the Gazette of India. However, the date on 
which the Code will come into effect has not been 
notified. The Ministry of Labour and Employment 
has released draft rules for the Code on Social 
Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has 
invited suggestions from stakeholders which are 
under active consideration by the Ministry. The 
Company will assess the impact of the Code and 
the associated rules when it comes into effect and 
will record any related impact in the period the 
Code becomes effective.

4.  Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the 
Company are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates (“the functional currency”). 
Indian rupee is the functional currency of the 
Company. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian 
Rupees (`) which is the Company’s presentation 
currency. All financial information presented in 
Indian Rupees has been rounded up to the nearest 
lakhs except where otherwise indicated.

5. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the 
disclosures of contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities at the date of financial statements, 
income and expenses during the period. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are 
revised and in future periods which are affected.

Application of accounting policies that require 
critical accounting estimates, judgements and 
assumption having the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognized in the financial statements 
are:

•  Valuation of financial instruments [Note C(2)]

•  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
[Note C(4)]

•  Useful lives of intangible assets [Note C(6)]

•  Estimate of Lease term and measurement of 
Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilities [Note 
C(7)]

•  Measurement of defined employee benefit 
obligations [Note C (11)]

•  Measurement of share-based payments [Note 
C(12)]

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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•  Provisions [Note C(13)]

•  Identification of performance obligation 
and timing of satisfaction of performance 
obligation, measurement of transaction price 
on revenue recognition [Note C(14)]

•  Utilization of tax losses and computation of 
deferred taxes [Note C(17)]

•  Expected Credit losses on Financial Assets 
[Note C(2)]

•  Impairment testing [Note C(10)]

Estimation of uncertainty relating to global 
health pandemic of COVID-19

The Company has considered the possible effects 
that may result from the pandemic relating to 
COVID-19 in the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements including the recoverability 
of carrying amounts of financial and non financial 
assets. The Company has, at the date of approval 
of these financial statements, used internal and 
external sources of information including credit 
reports and related information and economic 
forecasts in the light of conditions prevailing 
due to pandemic, and expects that the carrying 
amount of these assets will be recovered. The 
impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial 
statements may differ from that estimated as at 
the date of approval of these standalone financial 
statements.

C. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Foreign currency

 (i) Foreign currency transactions and balances

  Transactions in foreign currencies are initially 
recognized in the financial statements using 
exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated to the relevant functional currency 
at the exchange rates prevailing at the 
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
that are measured at fair value are retranslated 
to the functional currency at the exchange 
rate prevailing on the date that the fair value 
was determined. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency 
and measured at historical cost are translated 
at the exchange rate prevalent at the date 
of transaction. Foreign currency differences 
arising on translation are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss for determination 
of net profit or loss during the period.

(ii) Foreign operations

  The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, 
including goodwill and fair value adjustments 

arising on acquisition, are translated to the 
functional currency at exchange rates at the 
reporting date. The income and expenses 
of foreign operations and cash flows are 
translated to using average exchange rates 
during the period. Any differences arising 
on such translation are recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Such differences are 
included in the foreign currency translation 
reserve “FCTR” within other components of 
equity. When a foreign operation is disposed 
off, in part or in full, the relevant amount in 
the FCTR is transferred to profit or loss. 

2. Financial Instruments

a. Financial Assets

  Financial assets comprises investments in 
equity and debt securities, trade receivables, 
cash and cash equivalents and other financial 
assets.

 Initial recognition:

  All financial assets are recognised initially at 
fair value except for trade receivables which 
are recognised at transaction price. In the 
case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs 
that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset are added to the fair value 
on initial recognition. Purchases or sales of 
financial assets that require delivery of assets 
within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the market place (regular 
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 
i.e., the date that the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 

  Subsequent measurement:

 (i)  Financial assets measured at amortized 
cost: 

   Financial assets held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual 
cashflows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal 
amount oustanding are measured at 
amortised cost using effective interest 
rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortisation 
is recognised as finance income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

   The Company while applying above 
criteria has classified the following 
financial assets at amortised cost 

  a)  Trade receivable

  b)  Other financial assets.

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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 (ii)  Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

   Financial assets that are held within 
a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the financial 
assets give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount 
oustanding are subsequently measured at 
FVTOCI. Fair value movements in financial 
assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

Equity instruments held for trading are 
classified as at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL). For other equity instruments 
the company classifies the same either as 
at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The classification 
is made on initial recognition and is 
irrevocable. Fair value changes on 
equity investments at FVTOCI, excluding 
dividends, are recognised in other 
comprehensive income (OCI). 

(iii)  Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL):

Financial asset are measured at fair value 
through profit or loss if it does not meet 
the criteria for classification as measured 
at amortised cost or at fair value through 
other comprehensive income. All fair 
value changes are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets: 

Financial assets are derecognised when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or the financial asset is transferred 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. On 
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the 
difference between the carrying amount (measured 
at the date of derecognition) and the consideration 
received (including any new asset obtained less any 
new liability assumed) shall be recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, lease 
receivables under Ind AS 109, investments in debt 
instruments that are carried at amortised cost, 
investments in debt instruments that are carried 
at FVTOCI are tested for impairment based on the 
expected credit losses for the respective financial 
asset. 

(i) Trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each 
reporting date. The expected credit losses 

over lifetime of the asset are estimated by 
adopting the simplified approach using a 
provision matrix which is based on historical 
loss rates reflecting current condition and 
forecasts of future economic conditions. In this 
approach assets are grouped on the basis of 
similar credit characteristics such as industry, 
customer segment, past due status and other 
factors which are relevant to estimate the 
expected cash loss from these assets.

(ii) Other financial assets

Other financial assets are tested for 
impairment based on significant change 
in credit risk since initial recognition and 
impairment is measured based on probability 
of default over the lifetime when there is 
significant increase in credit risk.

b. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair 
value and any transaction cost that are attributable 
to the acquisition of the financial liabilities except 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss which are initially measured at fair value. 

Subsequent measurement:

The financial liabilities are classified for subsequent 
measurement into following categories: 

- at amortised cost

- at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

  The company is classifying the following 
financial liabilities at amortised cost;

 a) Borrowings from banks

b)  Borrowings from others

c)  Finance lease liabilities

d)  Trade payables

e)  Other financial liabilities

Amortised cost for financial liabilities 
represents amount at which financial liability 
is measured at initial recognition minus the 
principal repayments, plus or minus the 
cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between 
that initial amount and the maturity amount.

(ii)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured 
at FVTPL.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, 
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the 

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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obligation specified in the contract is discharged 
or cancelled or expires.

c.  Derivative financial instruments

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options 
are entered into by the Company to mitigate 
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates 
associated with certain payables, receivables and 
forecasted transactions denominated in certain 
foreign currencies. The Company also enters into 
cross currency and interest rate swaps for hedging 
the risk against variability in cash flows of its term 
loan. These derivative contracts do not qualify for 
hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, and are initially 
recognized at fair value on the date the contract 
is entered into and subsequently measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising 
from changes in the fair value of the derivative 
contracts are recognized in profit or loss.

d.  Offsetting of financial assets and financial 
liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the 
net amount is presented in the Balance Sheet 
when, and only when, the Company has a legal 
right to offset the recognised amounts and intends 
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the 
assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

e.  Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial 
assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for 
financial assets (which are categorised as equity 
instruments) at FVTOCI and financial assets or 
liabilities that are specifically designated as FVTPL. 
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 
reclassification is made only if there is a change 
in the business model for managing those assets. 
Changes to the business model are expected to 
be very infrequent. The management determines 
change in the business model as a result of external 
or internal changes which are significant to the 
Company’s operations. A change in the business 
model occurs when the Company either begins or 
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to 
its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial 
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively 
from the reclassification date which is the first day 
of the immediately next reporting period following 
the change in business model. The Company does 
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

3. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as Equity. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of new ordinary shares or share options are 

recognized as a deduction from Equity, net of any 
tax effects.

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and where applicable 
accumulated impairment losses. Cost of an item 
of property, plant and equipment comprises its 
purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchases taxes, after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates and includes expenditure 
directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets 
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and 
any other costs directly attributable to bringing 
the asset to a working condition for its intended 
use, and the costs of dismantling and removing 
the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located. Purchased software that is integral 
to the functionality of the related equipment is 
capitalized as part of that equipment. 

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment have different useful lives, they 
are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Amount paid as advances towards the acquisition 
of property, plant and equipment is disclosed 
separately under other non-current assets as 
capital advances and the cost of assets not put to 
use as on balance sheet date are disclosed under 
‘Capital work-in-progress.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment are determined by comparing 
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying 
amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
are recognized net within “other income / other 
expenses” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within the part will 
flow to the Company and its cost can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced 
part is de-recognized. The costs of the day-to-day 
servicing of property, plant and equipment are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of 
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each part of an item 
of property, plant and equipment considering 
the residual value to be zero. Depreciation on 
contract-specific assets are charged co-terminus 
over the contract period. Management’s estimated 
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useful lives for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 
March 31, 2020 were as follows:

 Estimated 
useful life 
in years

Useful life 
prescribed 

by Schedule 
II (in years)

Buildings 28 30

Plant and equipment

- Computer servers 5 6
-  Computer laptops/

desktop
3 3

Furniture and fittings 5 10
Office equipment 5 5

The management believes that the useful lives as 
given above best represent the period over which 
management expects to use these assets.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual 
value are reviewed at each of the reporting date.

5. Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind 
AS 103 Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires 
the identifiable intangible assets and contingent 
consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain 
the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. 
Significant estimates are required to be made in 
determining the value of contingent consideration 
and intangible assets. These valuations are 
conducted by independent valuation experts.

Business combinations have been accounted for 
using the acquisition method under the provisions 
of Ind AS 103. The cost of acquisition is measured 
at the fair value of the assets transferred, equity 
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or 
assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of 
acquisition also includes the fair value of any 
contingent consideration. Identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are measured 
initially at their fair value on the date of 
acquisition.

Transactions costs that the Company incurs in 
connection with a business combination such 
as finder’s fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, 
and other professional and consulting fees are 
expensed as incurred.

The acquisition of an asset or a group of assets 
that does not constitute a ‘business’ as per Ind AS 
103 is accounted for by identifying and recognizing 
the individual identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed. The cost of the group of assets 
is allocated to such individual identifiable assets 
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair 
values on the date of purchase.

Business combinations involving entities or 
businesses under common control have been 
accounted for using the pooling of interests 
method. 

6. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the 
Company, which have finite useful lives, are 
measured at cost less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the intangible asset.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it 
increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure, including expenditure on internally 
generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in 
profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization of intangible assets with finite 
useful lives

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of intangible assets from the date that they are 
available for use. The estimated useful lives for 
the current and previous year are as follows:

Estimate of useful 
life in years

System software 1 - 3

Other Intangibles 3 - 5

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate.

7. Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset class primarily consists 
of leases for land and buildings. The company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at 
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the company assesses whether:

(1)  the contract involves the use of an identified 
asset

(2)  the company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset 
through the period of the lease and 

(3)  the company has the right to direct the use of 
the asset.

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the 
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) 
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease 
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for 
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these 
short-term and low value leases, the Company 
recognizes the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options 
to extend or terminate the lease before the end 
of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities 
includes these options when it is reasonably 
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at 
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or prior to the commencement date of 
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any 
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the 
commencement date on a straight-line basis over 
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of 
the underlying asset. Right of use assets are 
evaluated for recoverability whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable 
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost 
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized 
cost at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
not readily determinable, using the incremental 
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the 
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a 
corresponding adjustment to the related right of 
use asset if the company changes its assessment 
if whether it will exercise an extension or a 
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately 
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified 
as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the 
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it 
accounts for its interests in the head lease and the 
sub-lease separately. The sublease is classified as 
a finance or operating lease by reference to the 
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized 
on a straight line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease.

8. Inventories

Inventories comprising traded hardware and 
software are measured at the lower of cost 
(determined using first-in first-out method) 
and net realizable value. Cost comprises cost 
of purchase and all directly attributable costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less the estimated costs of completion 
and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

9. Contract assets/liability

Contract Assets (Unbilled revenue) represents 
revenue in excess of billing. Contract Liability 
(Unearned income) represents unserved portion of 
billed contracts.

10. Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories and 
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use 
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested 
individually are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the 
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets 
(the “cash-generating unit”). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying 
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the 
units and then to reduce the carrying amount of 
the other assets in the unit or group of units on a 
pro rata basis.

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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Reversal of impairment loss

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are 
assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been 
recognized directly in other comprehensive 
income and presented within equity.

11. Employee benefits

Employee benefits are accrued in the period in 
which the associated services are rendered by 
employees of the Company, as detailed below:

(a) Defined contribution plan (Provident fund)

  Defined contribution plans are post-
employment benefit plans under which 
an entity pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity (a fund) and will have no 
legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further contributions if the fund does not 
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee 
benefits relating to employee service in the 
current and prior periods. The Company 
makes specified monthly contribution towards 
Government administered provident fund 
scheme. Obligations for contributions to 
defined contribution plans are recognised as 
an employee benefit expense in profit and 
loss in the periods during which the related 
services are rendered by employees.

(b) Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity 
Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump 
sum payment to eligible employees, at 
retirement or termination of employment 
based on the last drawn salary and years of 
employment with the Company. The gratuity 
fund is managed by the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (LIC). The company’s 
net obligation in respect of defined benefit 
plan is calculated by estimating the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned 
in the current and prior periods, discounting 
that amount and deducting any unrecognized 
past service cost and the fair value of any plan 
assets. 

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting 
date on risk free government bonds that have 
maturity dates approximating the terms of 
the Company’s obligations. The calculation 
is performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. 

When the calculation results in a benefit to 
the Company, the recognized asset is limited 
to the total of any unrecognized past service 
costs and the present value of economic 
benefits available in the form of any future 
refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit 
liability, which comprise actuarial gains 
and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest), are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and presented within 
equity. Remeasurements are not reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
Service costs, net interest expenses and other 
expenses related to defined benefit plans are 
recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Short term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are 
measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. 
A liability is recognized for the amount 
expected to be paid under short-term cash 
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company 
has a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the obligation 
can be estimated reliably.

(d) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled 
to compensated absence. The employees 
can carry forward a portion of the unutilized 
accrued absence and utilize it in future periods 
or receive cash compensation at retirement or 
termination of employment for the unutilized 
accrued compensated absence. The Company 
recognizes an obligation for compensated 
absences in the period in which the employee 
renders the services. The Company provides 
for the expected cost of compensated absence 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as the 
additional amount that the Company expects 
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement 
that has accumulated based on actuarial 
valuations carried out by an independent 
actuary at the balance sheet date.

12. Share-based payment transactions

The employees of the Company are entitled 
to participate in Employee Stock Option Plan 
(ESOP) where the employees are issued options to 
purchase shares of the Holding Company subject 
to vesting period. Accordingly, the fair value 
of option on the Grant date is amortised over 
the vesting period with a corresponding liability 
recognised against the Holding Company, which 
will issue shares on exercise.

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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13. Provisions

Provisions are recognized if, as a result of a 
past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. If the effect of the time value of 
money is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
Where discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized 
as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized 
when the expected benefits to be derived by 
the Company from a contract are lower than the 
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under 
the contract. The provision is measured at the 
present value of the lower of the expected cost 
of terminating the contract and the expected net 
cost of continuing with the contract. Before a 
provision is established, the Company recognizes 
any impairment loss on the assets associated with 
that contract.

14. Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue from Data Center 
services.

The revenue recognition in respect of the various 
streams of revenue is described as follows

Data Center Services (DC):

Revenue from DC services consists co-location of 
racks and power charges. The contracts are mainly 
for a fixed rate for a period of time. Revenue from 
co-location of racks, power charges and cross 
connect charges are series of distinct services. The 
performance obligations are satisfied overtime. 
Service revenue is recognized as the related 
services are performed. Sale of equipments such 
as servers, switches, networking equipments, 
cable infrastructure and racks etc are accounted 
as separate performance obligations if they are 
distinct and its related revenues are recognised at 
a point in time when the control is passed on to 
the customer.

Multiple deliverable arrangements

In certain cases, some elements belonging to the 
services mentioned above are sold as a package 
consisting of all or some of the elements.

The Company accounts for goods or services of 
the package separately if they are distinct. i.e if 
a good or service is separately identifiable from 
other promises in the contract and if the customer 
can benefit from the good or service either on its 
own or together with other resources that are 
readily available to the customer.

The Company allocate the transaction price to 
each performance obligation identified in the 
contract on a relative stand-alone selling price 
basis. Standalone selling price is the price at 
which group would sell a promised good or service 
separately to the customer.

If the relative stand-alone selling prices are not 
available, the group estimates the same. In doing 
so, the group maximise the use of observable 
inputs and apply estimation methods consistently 
in similar circumstances.

Contract Cost

Costs to fulfil customer contracts i.e the costs 
relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated 
contract that the Company can specifically 
identify or the costs generate/ enhance resources 
of the company that will be used in satisfying (or 
in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations 
in the future or the costs that are expected to be 
recovered are recognised as asset and amortized 
over the contract period. 

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are 
recognised as assets and amortized over the 
contract period if entity expects to recover those 
costs. The Company recognise incremental cost of 
obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred 
if the amortisation period of the asset that the 
entity otherwise would have recognised is one 
year or less.

Costs to obtain a contract that is incurred 
regardless of whether the contract is obtained 
are recognised as an expense when incurred, 
unless those costs are explicitly chargeable to the 
customer regardless of whether the contract is 
obtained.

Significant judgements on applying Ind AS 115

The Company contracts with customer include 
promises or arrangements to transfer multiple 
goods or services to a customer. The Company 
assess whether such arrangements in the contract 
has distinct goods or services (performance 
obligation). Identification of distinct performance 
obligation involves judgment to determine ability 
of customer to benefit independently from other 
promises in the contract.

The judgment is required to measure the 
transaction price for the contract. The transaction 
price is the amount of consideration to which 
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange 
for transferring promised goods or services to a 
customer. The consideration could be fixed amount 
or variable amount or could be both. Transaction 
price could also be adjusted for time value of 
money if contract includes a significant financing 
component.
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In the case of multiple arrangements in a contract, 
the Company allocate transaction price to each 
performance obligation based on standalone 
transaction price. The determination of standalone 
transaction price involves judgment.

The Company uses judgment in determining 
timing of satisfaction of performance obligation. 
The Company considers how customer benefits 
from goods or services as the services are 
rendered, who controls as the assets is created or 
enhanced, whether asset has an alternate use and 
the entity has an enforceable right to payment 
for performance completed to date, transfer 
of significant risk and reward to the customer, 
acceptance or sign off from the customer etc.,

The Company uses judgement when capitalising 
the contract cost as to whether it generates or 
enhances resources of the entity that will be used 
in satisfying performance obligation in the future.

15. Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on 
funds invested, dividend income, fair value gains 
on financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, using the effective 
interest method. Dividend income is recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss on the date when the 
company’s right to receive payment is established, 
which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-
dividend date. 

16. Finance expense

Finance expense comprises borrowing costs, bank 
charges, unwinding of discount on provision, fair 
value losses on financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss that are recognized in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Fair value changes attributable to 
hedged risk are recognised in Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs 
(including exchange difference relating to 
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that 
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest 
costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing 
of funds. Interest expense is recognised using 
effective interest method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the 
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are 
recognized as expenses in the period in which 
they are incurred. To the extent the Company 
borrows funds generally and uses them for the 
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the 
Company determines the amount of borrowings 
costs eligible for capitalization by applying a 
capitalization rate to the expenditure incurred on 

such asset. The capitalization rate is determined 
based on the weighted average of borrowing costs 
applicable to the borrowings of the Company which 
are outstanding during the period, other than 
borrowings made specifically towards purchase 
of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing 
costs that the Company capitalizes during a period 
does not exceed the amount of borrowing costs 
incurred during that period.

17. Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and 
deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized 
in profit or loss except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognized directly in equity or 
in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the 
expected tax payable on the taxable income for 
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. Minimum Alternate 
Tax (MAT) is accounted as current tax when the 
Company is subjected to such provisions of the 
Income Tax Act. However, credit of such MAT paid 
is available when the Company is subjected to tax 
as per normal provisions in the future. Credit on 
account of MAT is recognized as an deferred tax 
asset based on the management’s estimate of its 
recoverability in the future.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet 
method, providing for temporary differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 
tax is not recognized for the following temporary 
differences:

(i)  the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in 
a transaction that is not a business combination 
and that affects neither accounting nor 
taxable profit or loss.

(ii)  differences relating to investments in 
subsidiaries and associates to the extent that 
it is probable that they will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

(iii)  Arising due to taxable temporary differences 
on the initial recognition of goodwill, as the 
same is not deductible for tax purposes. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset if there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and 
they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle 
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized 
simultaneously.
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A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the temporary 
difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realized.

Significant judgments are involved in determining 
the provision for income taxes, including amount 
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax 
positions

18. Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings 
per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period. Where ordinary 
shares are issued but not fully paid, they are 
treated in the calculation of basic earnings per 
share as a fraction of an ordinary share to the 
extent that they were entitled to participate in 
dividends during the period relative to a fully 
paid ordinary share. Diluted EPS is determined by 
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders and the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects 
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. To the 
extent that partly paid shares are not entitled to 
participate in dividends during the period, they are 
treated as the equivalent of warrants or options in 
the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

19. Fair value measurement
A number of the Company’s accounting policies 
and disclosures require the determination of fair 
value, for both financial and non-financial assets 
and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. A fair value 
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either 
in the principal market for the asset or liability or 
in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The 
principal market or the most advantageous market 
must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset 
takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in 
its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy 
based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair 
value hierarchy is described below:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included 
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or 
liability 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements at fair value on a recurring 
basis, the Company determines whether transfers 
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each 
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics 
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of 
fair value hierarchy.

Fair values have been determined for measurement 
and / or disclosure purposes based on the following 
methods. When applicable, further information 
about the assumptions made in determining fair 
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that 
asset or liability.

(i)  Investments in equity and debt securities

  The fair value is determined by reference to 
their quoted price at the reporting date. In 
the absence of quoted price, the fair value of 
the financial asset is measured using valuation 
techniques.

(ii)  Trade and other receivables 

  The fair value of trade and other receivables 
expected to be realised beyond twelve 
months, excluding construction contracts in 
progress, is estimated as the present value of 
future cash flows, discounted at the market 
rate of interest at the reporting date. However 
in respect of such financial instruments, fair 
value generally approximates the carrying 
amount due to the short term nature of 
such assets. This fair value is determined for 
disclosure purposes or when acquired in a 
business combination.
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(iii)  Derivatives

  The fair value of forward exchange contracts 
is based on their quoted price, if available. 
If a quoted price is not available, the 
fair value is estimated by discounting the 
difference between the contractual forward 
price and the current forward price for the 
residual maturity of the contract using a 
risk free interest rate (based on government 
bonds). The fair value of foreign currency 
option contracts is determined based on the 
appropriate valuation techniques, considering 
the terms of the contract. Fair values reflect 
the credit risk of the instrument and include 
adjustments to take account of the credit 
risk of the Company and the counter party 
when appropriate. The fair value of the cross 
currency swaps (principal only swaps) and 
interest rate swaps is determined based on 
the discounting of the future cash flows at the 
market rates existing on the reporting date.

(iv)  Non derivative financial liabilities

  Fair value, which is determined for disclosure 
purposes, is calculated based on the present 
value of future principal and interest cash 
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest 
at the reporting date. For finance leases, 
the market rate of interest is determined by 
reference to similar lease agreements.

(v)  Share-based payment transactions

  The fair value of employee stock options is 
measured using the Black-Scholes method. 
Measurement inputs include share price on 
grant date, exercise price of the instrument, 
expected volatility (based on weighted 
average historic volatility adjusted for 
changes expected due to publicly available 
information), expected term of the instrument 
(based on historical experience and general 
option holder behaviour), expected dividends, 

and the risk free interest rate (based on 
government bonds).

20. Dividend distribution to Equity shareholders

Dividend distributed to Equity shareholders is 
recognised as distribution to owners of capital in 
the Statement of Changes in Equity, in the period 
in which it is paid.

21. Current/ non-current classification

An asset is classified as current if:

(a)  it is expected to be realised or sold or 
consumed in the Company’s normal operating 
cycle;

(b)  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c)  it is expected to be realised within twelve 
months after the reporting period; or

(d)  it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is 
restricted from being exchanged or used to 
settle a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current if:

(a)  it is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle;

(b)  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c)  it is expected to be settled within twelve 
months after the reporting period;

(d)  it has no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at lease twelve 
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s normal 
operating cycle is twelve months.

 

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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 3. Right of Use Assets and Liabilities

 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars
 Category of ROU asset

Land Building P&M Total

Balance as of April 1, 2020  -    -    -    -   

Additions through BTA (Net of Accumulated 
Depreciation)

 7,978  7,888  -    15,866 

Additions  10,146  10,146 

Deletions  -    -    -    -   

Depreciation  (99)  (1,526)  -    (1,625)

Translation difference  -    -    -    -   

Balance as of March 31, 2021  7,879  16,508  -    24,387 

 Lease Liabilities

 Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2021

 Current lease liabilities  3,464 

 Non-current lease liabilities  14,538 

 Total  18,002 

 The movement in lease liabilities during the Year ended March 31, 2021 are given below

 Particulars
For the  

year ended  
March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year  -   

Additions through BTA  7,081 

Additions  9,949 

Finance cost accrued during the year  1,600 

Payment of lease liabilities  (628)

Balance at the end of the year  18,002 

  The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of  
lease liabilities on discounted basis 

 Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2021

Less than one year  1,750 

One to five years  6,048 

More than five years  6,740 

Total  14,538 

 Amounts recognised in profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 are given below

 Particulars
For the  

year ended  
March 31, 2021

Interest on lease liabilities 1,600

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, 
including short-term leases of low value assets 421

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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   As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

4. INVESTMENTS - NON-CURRENT  

Trade Investments

Investment in equity instruments

Investment in equity of others – unquoted (Refer note below)

Investment in Vashi Railway Station Commercial  
Complex Limited
[15,000 equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up] 2  - 

Investment in Sarayu Clean Gen Pvt Ltd 

[1,56,000 equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up] 15  -   

17  -   

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments 17  -   

Note:

Pursuant to BTA, the Investments in Vashi Railway Station Commercial Complex Limited  ̀  2 and Investments 
in Sarayu Clean Gen Pvt Ltd ` 15 has been transferred from Parent company Sify Technologies Limited

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRENT

 Security deposits 1,829  -   

1,829  -   

6. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 Capital advances 780  -   

 Prepaid expenses 83  -   

863  -   

7. INVENTORIES 

 Trade inventories 265  -   

265  -   

8. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables considered good - Secured  -  - 

Trade receivables - Unsecured  -   

Considered good [Refer note (a) below]  18,788  - 

Considered doubtful  495  - 

Total  19,283  - 

Loss Allowance  [Refer note (b) below]  (495)  - 

Net Trade receivables 18,788  -   

(a)  This amount include receivables relating to services rendered to holding company ` 303 and ` 574 
towards fellow subsidiary and also includes amount receivable towards customer contracts novation 
pursuant to BTA, which is in progress as on March 31, 2021 transferred from holding company ` 8,215 
and transferred to fellow subsidiary ` 322. Pending confirmation from customers, the invoices have 
been booked in parent company / fellow subsidiary and subsequently transferred as on March 31, 
2021. Also refer note D (33).

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2021

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2020

(b)  The activity in loss allowance for doubtful receivables is 
given below:   

Balance at the beginning of the year  -  - 

Add: Additional provision during the year  500  - 

Less: Bad debts written off  (5)  - 

Balance at the end of the year  495  - 

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Balance with banks
 (i)   in current accounts 568 40
 (ii)  deposits 412 475
(b) Other bank balances
 (i) Bank deposits [Refer note below] 243  -   

1,223 515

Note

Balances in deposit accounts subject to lien in favour of banks 
for obtaining bank guarantees /letter of credits/borrowings

243  -   

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement:

Cash and cash equivalents as above 1,223 515

Less: Bank overdraft used for cash management purposes  
[Refer note 16 (d)]  (173)  - 

 1,050  515 

10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
 Amounts receivable from holding company (Refer Note below) 8,843  - 
 Security deposits 87  - 
 Interest accrued on deposits 62 10
 Other Receivables  -  - 

8,992 10

Note: ` 8,843 is receivable from holding company on account of transfer of assets/liabilities, transfer of 
revenue and expenses, customer receipts received and vendor payments made by the parent company 
pertaining to the services rendered by and for the company. Also refer note D (33). 

11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advances other than capital advances:
Balances with GST, service tax and sales tax authorities 135  - 
Prepaid expenses 58  - 
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (Net of Provision for 
Tax; Previous year: ` *)

 - *

Other advances 130  - 
(A) 323  - 

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances other than capital advances 1  - 
Less:  Provision for doubtful advances [Refer note (a) below]  (1)  - 

(B)  -       -      
(A)+(B) 323  - 

* Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2021

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2020

(a)  The activity in allowance for doubtful advances are given 
below:

 Balance at the beginning of the year  -  - 

 Add: Additional provision during the year  1  - 

 Balance at the end of the year  1  - 

12. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized

55,00,00,000 (March 31, 2020: 2,50,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each 55,000 2,500

Issued

50,50,00,000 (March 31, 2020: 50,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each 50,500 500

Subscribed and fully paid

50,50,00,000 (March 31, 2020: 50,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each 
fully paid up 50,500 500

50,500 500

(a) The equity shares are the only class of share capital having a par value of ` 10 per share.

(b)  Equity shares carry voting rights proportionate to the paid-up value per share. In the event of liquidation 
of the company, holders of the equity shares are entitled to be repaid the amounts credited as paid 
up on those equity shares. All surplus assets after settlement of liabilities as at the commencement 
of winding-up shall be paid to the holders of equity shares in proportion to their shareholdings. The 
above payment is subject to the rights of creditors, employees, taxes, if any, and any other sums as 
may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(c)  Pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement (‘BTA’) entered on January 28, 2021, the Company had 
acquired Data Center services business along with all tangible, intangible assets and liabilities relating 
to said business, on a going concern basis from its holding company, Sify Technologies Limited. The 
consideration payable for acquisition of said business was discharged through issue of 50,00,00,000 
shares of INR 10 each as fully paid up.

12.1 Reconciliation of number of shares in the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number of 

shares
Amount  
paid- up

Number of 
shares

Amount  
paid- up

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 50,00,000 500 50,00,000 500
Add:Shares issued pursuant to BTA  50,00,00,000     50,000     -       -      
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 50,50,00,000 50,500 50,00,000 500

12.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares of the Company:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number of 
Shares held 

%  
holding

Number of 
Shares held 

%  
holding

 Sify Technologies Limited 50,50,00,000 100.00% 50,00,000 100.00%

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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13. OTHER EQUITY

13.1 Reserves and surplus

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  (16)  (17)

Adjustments:

Add: Profit for the year  7,890  1 

(A)  7,874  (16)

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/asset

Balance at the beginning of the year  -  - 

Add: Additions during the year  (14)  - 

(B)  (14)  - 

(C) = (A)+(B)  7,860  (16)

Nature and purpose of Reserves

a) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents accumulated undistributed profits of the company that can be distributed 
by the Company as dividends to its equity share holders.

b) Remeasurement of Defined benefit liability / Asset 

Remeasurement of Defined benefit liability / Asset represent the cumulative actuarial gain / loss 
recognized in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

14.  BORROWINGS

14.1.  Term Loans

Secured

From banks [Refer Note (a) to (d) below] 22,577  - 

(A) 22,577  - 

14.2.  Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities - Non Current 14,538  - 

(B) 14,538  - 

(A) + (B) 37,115  - 

a.  Of total balance ` 13,752 is primarily secured by charge on movable fixed assets funded by term loan 
and also secured by project receivables. Of the above amount, ` 12,282 is transferred from Parent 
company Sify Technologies Limited pursuant to BTA. The charge creation and documentation with regard 
to securities is under progress. An amount of ` 9,655 including current maturities is primarily secured 
against the specific project receivables of the company and ` 3,520 is secured by moveable fixed assets 
funded out of Term Loan. These loans are transferred from Parent company Sify Technologies Limited 
pursuant to BTA. The charge creation and documentation with regard to securities is under progress. 
Pending transfer of security, the charge creation is still in the name of Sify Technologies Limited, Parent 
Company.

b.  Of the total balance ` 3,315 is primarily secured by moveable fixed assets at Rabale Tower 
II Data center (1st & 2nd floor) funded by Term Loan and collaterally secured by property at Vashi  
(5th floor) in Mumbai and project receivables. An amount of ` 1,116 primarily secured by Hyderabad 
property and collaterally secured by the properties at TIDEL Vileparle and Vashi (6th Floor) and 
movable fixed assets. These loans are transferred from Parent Company Sify Technologies Limited 
pursuant to BTA. The charge creation and documentation with regard to securities is under progress. 
Pending transfer of security, the charge creation is still in the name of Sify Technologies Limited, 
Parent Company.
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(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

c.  During the year under review, the company has entered into External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) 
facility agreement for $50 and drawn down  $20 out of sanctioned loan. The Company has also entered 
into agreement for currency swap (from USD to INR) to fully hedge foreign currency exposure towards 
principal repayment and interest rate swap from floating to fixed.

d.  The term loans bear interest rate ranging from 3.50% to 5.30% plus 6 months LIBOR in the case of Foreign 
currency term loans and  6.80% to 9.6% for others and repayable in  quarterly instalments within a tenor 
of 3 to 5 years after moratorium periods ranging from 6 months to one year in certain cases.

e.  These loans are primarily taken from NBFCs. Pursuant to BTA, Loans amounting to ` 294 including 
current maturities has been transferred from 100% holding company Sify Technologies Limited.

f.  The loans bear interest rate ranging from 8.6% to 9.9% and repayable over a period of 12 to 60 months 
on equated monthly / quarterly instalments.

g.  The current maturities of the above borrowings, carrying the aforesaid security and repayment terms 
are grouped under other financial liabilities.

The current maturities of borrowings are as under:

Secured

Term loan from banks 8,781  - 

Unsecured

Loan from others [Refer Note (e) & (f) above] 294  - 

Current portion of lease obligation 3,464  - 

12,539  - 

15.  PROVISIONS
Provisions for employee benefits - current
Compensated absences 7  - 

(A) 7  - 
Provisions for employee benefits - non-current
Gratuity 83  - 
Compensated absences 22  - 

(B) 105  - 

16.  BORROWINGS (SHORT-TERM)
Loans repayable on demand from banks – Secured   
[Refer notes (a) to (d) below]
Working capital facilities 4,443  - 

4,443  - 

(a)  The above facilities amounting to ̀  4,443, bank guarantees and non fund limits availed by the Company 
are primarily secured by way of pari-passu first charge on the entire current assets of the Company. 
The outstanding exposure amount is transferred from Parent company Sify Technologies Limited 
pursuant to BTA. The charge creation and documentation with regard to securities is under progress. 
Pending documentation for transfer of Charge to the respective subsidiary companies, entire security 
charge is in the name of the parent company

(b)  In addition to the above, out of these loans repayable on demand from banks,

  (i)  exposure amounting to ` 3,230 is  secured collaterally by way of pari-passu charge on the 
unencumbered movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future. The outstanding 
facility amount is transferred from 100% holding company Sify Technologies Limited pursuant 
to BTA. The charge creation and documentation with regard to securities is under progress. 
Pending documentation for transfer of Charge to the respective subsidiary companies, entire 
security charge is in the name of the parent company
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  (ii)  exposure amounting to ` 2,102 is  secured collaterally by way of equitable mortgage over the 
properties at Tidel Park, Chennai, Vashi 6th floor, Vile Parle at Mumbai and Hyderabad Property. 
The outstanding facility amount is transferred from 100% holding company Sify Technologies 
Limited pursuant to BTA. The charge creation and documentation with regard to securities is 
under progress. Pending documentation for transfer of Charge , security charge is in the name 
of the parent company

         (iii)  exposure amounting to ` 1,213 is collaterally secured by equitable mortgage over the land and 
building at Noida and also covered by WDV of specific movable fixed assets funded out of their 
Term loan (since closed) at Noida DC,  Uttar Pradesh. The outstanding facility amount is transferred 
from 100% holding company Sify Technologies Limited pursuant to BTA. The charge creation and 
documentation with regard to securities is under progress. Pending documentation for transfer of 
Charge, entire security charge is in the name of the parent company, Sify Technologies Ltd

  (iv)  the exposure amounting to ` 854 is collaterally secured by equitable mortgage over the Vashi 
5th floor property at Mumbai. The outstanding facility amount is transferred from 100% holding 
company Sify Technologies Limited pursuant to BTA. The charge creation and documentation 
with regard to securities is under progress. Pending documentation for transfer of Charge, entire 
security charge is in the name of the parent company, Sify Technologies Ltd

(c)  These working capital facilities bear interest ranging from 5.4% p.a. to 9.45% p.a. and these facilities 
are subject to renewal annually.

(d)   Working capital facilities comprises the following: 

  Bank overdraft 173  - 

  Other working capital facilities 4,270  - 

4,443  - 

17.  TRADE PAYABLES
Towards purchase of goods and services *
(A) Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  -  - 
(B)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises 8,687  - 
Other payables 110 21

8,797 21
* Includes :

(a)  This amount include payables relating to services received  from holding company ̀  1,379  and also includes ̀  4,095 on account of amount 
payable towards vendor contracts novation pursuant to BTA, which is in progress as on March 31, 2021. Pending confirmation from vendors, 
the invoices have been booked in parent company and subsequently transferred as on March 31, 2021. Also refer note D (33).

(b)  There are no dues payable to micro, small and medium enterprises as on March 31, 2021 (Previous year - Nil) - Refer note 38

18.  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amounts payable to fellow subsidiaries  2,082  - 
Amounts payable to holding company  - 20
Capital creditors 5,946  - 
Current maturities of long term debt* 8,781  - 
Current maturities of other loans* 294  - 
Other Lease liabilities current  3,464  - 
Interest accrued 75  - 
Derivative financial liabilities  81  - 
Other payables 1,983  - 

22,706 20

Note: Includes ̀  2,082 payable to Sify Digital Services Limited, Fellow subsidiary of the company on account 
of transfer of revenue and expenses, customer receipts received and vendor payments made on behalf of 
the company. Also refer note D (33).    
*Also refer note D(14)

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 
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19.  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advances received from customers 38  - 

Statutory payables  71  - 

Contract liability (Unearned income)* 1,234  - 

Other payables 62  - 

Current tax liability (Net of Advance tax paid ` 1,257) 1,383  - 

2,788  - 
* Refer Note 37 for the movement in Contract liability (Unearned income) 

20.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a)  Contingent liabilities
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims which are arising in the ordinary course of 
business. The Company’s management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when 
ultimately concluded and determined, will have material and adverse effect on the Company’s results 
of operations or financial conditions.

(b)  Capital commitments

  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for 12,337  - 

For the
Year ended 

March 31, 2021

For the
Year ended 

March 31, 2020

21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Services:

- Domestic 54,015  - 
- Export 2,257  - 
Sale of Products:
- Domestic 15  - 

56,287  - 

22. OTHER INCOME
Interest income
 From banks  178  23 
 Others  72  - 

250 23
23. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

A. Cost of services rendered
 Power expenses 21,566  - 
 Other direct costs 166  - 

21,732  - 
B. Purchases of Stock in Trade 959  - 
C. Changes in inventories - Stock in Trade
 Opening inventory  -  - 
 Less: closing inventory  (265)  - 

 (265)   - 
22,426  - 

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 
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24. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and wages 1,847  - 

Contribution to provident and other funds 65  - 

Staff welfare expenses 63  - 

Share-based payments to employees* 24  - 

1,999  - 
*Also refer note C (12)

25. FINANCE COSTS

Interest 3,007  - 

Other finance costs 118  * 

Interest on lease liability 1,600  - 

4,725  * 
* Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

26. OTHER EXPENSES
Communication expenses 9  - 
Rent 421  9 
Rates and taxes 354  * 
Travelling expenses 22  - 
Power and fuel expenses 140  - 
Legal and professional 277  * 
Payment to auditors

- Statutory audit fees  13  * 
Repairs and maintenance expenses   

- Plant and machinery  1,120  - 
- Buildings  129  - 
- Others  2,865  1 

Insurance  26  - 
Outsourced manpower costs  146  - 
Advertisement, selling and marketing expenses  9  - 
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)  97  - 
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (Net of Bad debts written off ` 5)  500  - 

Miscellaneous expenses  996 10

7,124 20
* Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

For the
Year ended 

March 31, 2021

For the
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
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(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

27. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

 (i) Long term borrowings *

Particulars
As at 

April 01, 
2020 

Acquired 
through BTA Proceeds Repayment

As at 
March 31, 

2021

Term loans from Bank  -  26,681  12,445  (7,768)  31,358 

Term loans from Others  -  655  -  (361)  294 

Finance lease obligations  -  -  -  -  - 

Total  - 27,336 12,445  (8,129) 31,652

 * including current maturities

(ii) Short term borrowings

Particulars
As at         

April 01, 
2020 

Acquired 
through BTA Cash flow

Foreign 
exchange 
movement

As at 
March 31, 

2021

Working capital facilities 
excluding overdraft*

 -  2,487  1,783  -  4,270 

Other short term 
borrowing

 -  -  -  -  - 

Total  -  2,487  1,783  -  4,270 

 * Bank overdrafts are used for cash management purposes [Refer Note D (9)]

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
  The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax assets and a description 

of the items that created these differences is given below :

 Recognised deferred tax assets/liabilities

As at         
March 31, 2021

As at         
March 31, 2020

Deferred tax assets on temporary deductible differences

Property, Plant and Equipment  2,841  - 

Leases under Ind AS 116  336  - 

Provision for employee benefits  3  - 

Accounts receivable  124  - 

 3,304  - 

Deferred tax liabilities on temporary taxable differences

Intangible assets  (20)  - 

 (20)  - 

Net deferred tax asset recognised in Balance Sheet  3,284  - 

In assessing the realizability of the deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion 
or all of deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent 
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences 
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected 
future taxable income and tax planning strategy in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical 
taxable income and projections of future taxable income over the periods in which deferred tax assets are 
deductible, management recognizes deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences to the extent 
of deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences. The amount of deferred tax assets considered 
realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income are reduced.
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(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

 Movement in temporary differences during current and previous year

Provision for 
employee 
benefits

Accounts 
Receivable

Property, 
Plant and 

Equipment

Intangible 
assets

Finance lease 
obligations

Leases under 
Ind AS 116

Balance as at March 31, 2020  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Recognised in income statement  3  124  2,841  (20)  -  336 

Recognised in Equity  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  3  124  2,841  (20)  -  336 

Unrecognised deferred tax asset

As at         
March 31, 2021

As at         
March 31, 2020

Deductible temporary differences

Unrecognised tax losses  -    20 

Unrecognised deferred tax asset  -    20 

 
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss

Current tax expense/ (reversal)  2,640  1 

Deferred tax liability / (asset)  (3,284)  1 

 (644)  2 

Reconciliation of effective tax rates

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed  
by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before  
taxes is summarised below:

Profit before taxes  7,246  3 

Enacted tax rates in India 25.17% 26.00%

Expected tax expense/(benefit)  1,824  1 

Effect of :

Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset on temporary 
differences

 (1,940)  - 

Recognition of current year temporary differences  (672)

MAT Credit reversal  -  1 

Others  144  * 

 (644)  2 
* Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the Company

29.  RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN COMPUTING  
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF EQUITY SHARES

(a) Weighted average number of shares

 Issued fully paid up ordinary shares as on April 1, 50,00,000 50,00,000

  Issued as fully paid up in consideration for business  
acquisition pursuant to BTA  50,00,00,000  -   

 Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 50,50,00,000 50,00,000
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30. FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE
 The details of foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021

Foreign 
Currency

Amount in 
foreign currency

Amount in 
Indian Rupees

Amounts receivable in foreign currency on account of:  
Trade Receivables USD  12 897
   897 
Amounts payable in foreign currency on account of:   
Trade Payables USD 1  66 
  66 
Foreign currency long term loan   USD  20 1,470

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

For the  
year ended

March 31 2021

For the  
year ended

March 31 2020

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a. Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation (Gratuity)
 Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  -  - 

 Service cost  11  - 

 Interest cost  4  - 

 Remeasurement (gain)/losses  14  - 

 Benefits paid  (10)  - 

 Acquisition Adjustment on account of BTA  65  

 Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year  84  - 
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present value of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year  84  - 

Funded status amount of liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 84  - 

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Service cost  11  - 

Interest cost  4  - 

Net gratuity costs  15  - 
Summary of actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 5.70%  - 

Expected rate of return on plan assets 5.00% p.a. -

Salary escalation rate 0% for the 
first year and 
5% thereafter

-

Average future working life time 4.20 years -

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as 
at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered take into account the inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

The company is in the process of transferring employees from parent company pursuant to BTA. Currently 
the employees are on deputation from the Parent Company. Contribution to Plan Assets would be made 
during the current year in accordance with the contribution policy of the company.

Sify_INFINIT_ACCOUNTS 2021.indd   50 30-08-2021   12:47:41



51

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited 

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

The expected cash flows over the next few years are as follows:

1 year 18  - 

2 to 5 years 48  - 

6 to 10 years 31  - 

More than 10 years 13  - 

Remeasurement (gain) /loss arising from 

- change in financial assumptions  (4)  - 

- experience variance  18  - 

 14  - 

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate 
and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably 
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other 
assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate (-/+ 1%) 87 80  -  - 

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 4.5% (4.1%)  -  - 

Salary Growth rate (-/+ 1%) 80 86  -  - 

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (3.5%) 3.6%  -  - 

b. Contributions to defined contribution plans
  In accordance with Indian law, all employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined 

contribution plan. Both the employee and employer make monthly contributions to the plan, each 
equal to a specified percentage of employee’s basic salary. The company has no further obligations 
under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. An amount of ` 50 and ` Nil was contributed for the 
year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively.

  The company is in the process of transferring employees from parent company pursuant to BTA. 
Currently the employees are on deputation from the Parent Company and hence the contribution to 
the plan was made by the parent company and transferred subsequently to subsidiary companies as 
on March 31, 2021.

32. SEGMENT REPORTING 
  The Company publishes this financial statement along with the consolidated financial statements. In 

accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, the Company has disclosed the segment information in 
the consolidated financial statements.

33. RELATED PARTIES AND TRANSACTIONS
 (a) Related parties
   The related parties where control / significant influence exists are subsidiaries and associates. Key 

management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director whether 
executive or otherwise. Key management personnel includes the board of directors and other senior 
management executives. The other related parties are those with whom the Company has had 
transaction during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are as follows:
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(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

Particulars Related Parties Country of 
Incorporation

 % of 
ownership 
interest

Ultimate Holding 
Company

Infinity Satcom Universal Private Limited India -

Raju Vegesna Infotech and Industries 
Private Limited (subsidiary of  Infinity 
Satcom Universal Private Limited)

India -

Ramanand Core Investment Company 
Private Limited (subsidiary of Raju Vegesna 
Infotech and Industries Private Limited)

India -

Holding Company Sify Technologies Limited India 100%

Fellow Subsidiaries Sify Technologies (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore

Sify Technologies North America 
Corporation

USA

Sify Data and Managed Services Limited India

Sify Digital Services Limited India

Print House (India) Private Limited India

 (b) Related party transactions and balances
  Following is a summary of related party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Transactions Sify Technologies 
Limited

Sify Digital Services 
Limited

Lease rentals to holding company** 1,379

Lease rentals Deposit** 345

Receipt of services 1,972

Rendering of services 303 574

Shares issued pursuant to BTA 50,000

Advances received on account of BTA* 2,300

Revenue transfers on account of BTA* 8,345 3,256

Expenses transfers on account of BTA* 8,245 1,039

Amounts received on behalf of the company 187

Advances repaid 20

Amount of outstanding balances

Trade payable 1,379

Amounts receivable on account of BTA* 12,963

Amounts Payable on account of BTA* 2,404

Trade receivable 303  574 

   *Pursuant to BTA which is effective from February 1, 2021 with appointed date of April 1, 2020, the transactions that were 
recorded in the parent company and the balances as on January 31, 2021 pertaining the businesses that were transferred have 
been transferred to the subsidiary companies respectively. The customer and vendor contracts novation is in progress as on March 
31, 2021. Pending confirmation from customers and vendors, the invoices have been booked in parent company and subsequently 
transferred to subsidiary companies as on March 31, 2021.

   **During the year 2020-21, the Company had entered into a lease agreement with its parent Sify Technologies Limited, to lease 
the premises at Chennai, Noida and Hyderabad owned by the company for a period of ten years effective April 1, 2020 on a rent of 
` 7.20 (Rupees Seven lakhs Twenty Thousand), ` 57.37 (Rupees Fifty Seven Lakhs Thirty Seven Thousand) & ` 50.32 (Rupees Fifty 
Lakhs Thirty two thousand) respectively per month with an escalation of 3% on the last paid rent after the end of every year and 
refundable security deposit equal to the rent of three months on all the said properties.

   #Pursuant to agreement for shared services between entities, the billing from parent entity to the subsidiary entities and vice 
versa is part of the services rendered and services received.
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  Following is a summary of related party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Transactions Holding Company Subsidiaries

Receipt of services 20  -   

Amount of outstanding balances

Advances payable 20  -   

Trade payable 20  -   

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 a. Derivative financial instruments 
 i. Forward and option contracts 
   Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are purchased to mitigate the risk of changes in 

foreign exchange rates associated with certain payables, receivables and forecasted transactions 
denominated in certain foreign currencies. These derivative contracts are initially recognized at fair 
value on the date the contract is entered into and subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Gains 
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the derivative contracts are recognized immediately 
in profit or loss. The counterparties for these contracts are generally banks or financial institutions. 
There are no outstanding forward contracts as at March 31, 2021.

 ii. Swap Arrangements
   The Company has entered into swap arrangement comprising of Cross Currency Swap (on Principal 

repayment) and Interest rate swap (floating to fixed), in order to hedge the cash flows arising out of 
the Principal and Interest payments of the underlying External Commercial Borrowing denominated in 
USD. The period of the swap contract is co terminus with the period of the underlying ECB. As per the 
terms of the arrangement, the Company shall pay INR fixed and receive fixed USD principal cash flows 
during the term of the contract and the Company shall pay fixed rate of interest (8.9%) and receive 
variable rate of interest equal to LIBOR + 2.5% on notional amount. The swap arrangement is marked 
to market at the end of every period and profit / losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The details of Cross Currency Swap and Interest Rates Swap is as follows:

 a. Cross Currency Swap
  The outstanding balances as on March 31, 2021 is as follows

Particulars Value of the 
INR term loan

Value of the 
USD principal

Mark to Market  
losses/ (gain)

Tranche 1 1,470 USD 20  -      
Tranche 2 (Undrawn) 2,205 USD 30  -      
Total 3,675 USD 50  -      

The maturity of these contracts extends till five years and six months. The table below summarizes 
the cash flows (principal) of these derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period as at the end of the year:

As at March 31, 2021
Receivable 

(USD)
Payable 
 (INR)

Less than 1 year  5  368 
One to two years  10  735 
Two to three years  10  735 
Three to four years  10  735 

Four to five years  10  735 

More than five years  5  367 
Total cash flows  50  3,675 

The Company recognized a net loss on the cross currency swaps of  ` Nil [Previous year : ` Nil] for the 
year ended March 31, 2021.

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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iii. Interest rate swap:
The maturity of these contracts extends till five years and six months. The table below summarizes 
the cash flows (interest) of these derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings 
based on the remaining period as at the end of the year:

As at March 31, 2021
Receivable 

(USD)
Payable 

(INR)
Less than 1 year  1  323 
One to two years  1  270 
Two to three years  1  205 
Three to four years  1  139 

Four to five years  *  74 

More than five years  *  12 
Total cash flows  4  1,023 

Total notional amount outstanding as on March 31, 2021 is USD 20 (Previous Year:  USD Nil)

The Company recognized a net mark to market loss on the interest rate swaps of ` 81 during the year 
ended March 31, 2021 (Previous year Nil).

b. Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2021 were 
as follows:

Particulars

Financial 
assets/ 

liabilities at 
amortised 

costs

Financial 
assets/ 

liabilities 
at FVTPL

Financial 
assets/

liabilities 
at FVTOCI

Total 
carrying 

value

Total fair 
value

Assets

Investments  -  - 17 17 17

Trade receivables 18,788  -  - 18,788 18,788

Cash and cash equivalents 1,223  -  - 1,223 1,223

Other financial assets 10,821  -  - 10,821 10,821

Liabilities

Borrowings from banks 35,628  -  - 35,628 35,628

Borrowings from others 294  -  - 294 294

Bank overdraft 173  -  - 173 173

Lease Liabilities 18,002  -  - 18,002 18,002

Trade payables 8,797  -  - 8,797 8,797

Other financial liabilities 10,086  -  - 10,086 10,086

Derivative financial 
instruments

 -  81  - 81 81

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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   The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2020 were 
as follows:

Particulars

Financial 
assets/ 

liabilities at 
amortised 

costs

Financial 
assets/ 

liabilities 
at FVTPL

Financial 
assets/

liabilities 
at FVTOCI

Total 
carrying 

value

Total fair 
value

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 515  -  - 515  515 

Other financial assets 10  -  - 10  10 

Liabilities

Trade payables 21  -  -  21  21 

Other financial liabilities  20  -  -  20  20 

  Details of financial assets pledged as collateral
   The carrying amount of financial assets as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 that the Company has 

provided as collateral for obtaining borrowing and other facilities from the bankers are as follows:

As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Trade receivables 18,788  - 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,223  - 

Other financial assets 10,821  - 

30,832  - 

 c. Fair value measurements:
  The details of assets and liabilities that are measured on fair value on recurring basis are given below:

Fair value as of  
March 31, 2021

Fair value as of  
March 31, 2020

Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Assets

Derivative financial assets - gain on 
outstanding forward contracts  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities - loss on 
outstanding option/forward contracts  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Derivative financial liabilities - loss on 
outstanding cross currency swaps - -  -  -  -  - 

Derivative financial liabilities - (Gain) / loss on 
outstanding interest rate swaps - -  81  -  -  - 

• Level 1 – unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

•  Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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d. Interest income/(expenses), gains/(losses) recognized on financial assets and liabilities

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

 Interest income on bank deposits  178  23 
 Interest income on other financial assets  72  - 
 Impairment on trade receivables  (500)  - 
(b)  Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss (FVTPL)
  Net gains/(losses) on fair valuation of derivative 

financial instruments  (81) -

(c)  Financial liabilities at amortised cost
  Interest expenses on lease obligations  (1,600)  - 
  Interest expenses on borrowings from banks, others 

and overdrafts  (2,926)  - 

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• Credit risk

• Liquidity risk

• Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s 
risk management framework. The Board of Directors has established a risk management policy to identify 
and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor 
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes 
in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors oversees how management 
monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk 
management framework. The Board of Directors are assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal 
Audit undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported 
to the Board of Directors.

Credit  risk:
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument 
fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables, 
treasury operations and other activities that are in the nature of leases.

Trade and other receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
Management considers that the demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk 
of the industry and country in which customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. Credit 
risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit 
worthiness of the customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of the business.

Cash and cash equivalents and other investments
In the area of treasury operations, the Company is presently exposed to counter-party risks relating to short 
term and medium term deposits placed with public-sector banks, and also to investments made in mutual 
funds. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for monitoring the counterparty credit risk, and has been 
vested with the authority to seek Board’s approval to hedge such risks in case of need.

Exposure to credit risk
The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment losses recognized represents the 
maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 
was as follows:

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended  
March 31, 2020
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Other investments  17  - 
Trade receivables  18,788  - 
Cash and cash equivalents  1,223  515 
Other financial assets  10,821  10 

 30,849  525 

Financial assets 
There is no other class of financial assets that is past due but not impaired other than trade receivables. 
The age analysis of trade receivables have been considered from the date of invoice. The ageing of trade 
receivables, net of allowances that are past due, is given below: 

Period (in days) As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

Less than 180 days  15,225  - 
181 - 270 days  1,268  - 
271 - 365 days  902  - 
365 days  1,393  - 

 18,788  - 

See note D (8) for the activity in the allowance for impairment of trade account receivables.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Cash and cash equivalents, other assets, other receivables and finance lease receivables are neither past 
due nor impaired.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated 
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 
to meet its liabilities when due, under normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient 
cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations. In addition, the 
Company has concluded arrangements with well reputed Banks, and has unused lines of credit that could be 
drawn upon should there be a need. The Company is also in the process of negotiating additional facilities 
with Banks for funding its requirements.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments 
and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

0-12 
months 

1-3 
years

3-5 
years

> 5 
Years

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks 35,628 41,089  15,486  18,571  7,032  - 
Borrowings from others 294 309  309  -  -  - 
Bank overdraft 173 173  173  -  -  - 
Lease Liabilities 18,002 27,525  3,307  6,137  5,440  12,641 
Trade payables 8,797 8,797  8,797  -  -  - 
Other financial liabilities 10,086 10,086  10,086  -  -  - 

72,980 87,979 38,158 24,708 12,472 12,641

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)

As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020
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 As at March 31, 2020

 Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

0-12 
months 

1-3 
years

3-5 
years

> 5 
Years

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 21 21  21  -  -  - 
Other financial liabilities 20 20  20  -  -  - 

41 41 41  -  -  - 

Market risk: 
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a 
change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result 
of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk 
sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including 
foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to 
foreign exchange rate risk (currency risk), interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus 
the Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue 
generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

Currency risk:
The Company’s exposure in USD, Euro and other foreign currency denominated transactions gives rise to 
Exchange rate fluctuation risk. Company’s policy in this regard incorporates:

- Forecasting inflows and outflows denominated in US$ for a twelve-month period

- Estimating the net-exposure in foreign currency, in terms of timing and amount.

-  Determining the extent to which exposure should be protected through one or more risk-mitigating 
instruments to maintain the permissible limits of uncovered exposures.

-  Carrying out a variance analysis between estimate and actual on an ongoing basis, and taking stop-loss 
action when the adverse movements breaches the 5% barrier of deviation, subject to review by Board of 
Directors.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2021 was as follows:

All amounts in respective currencies as mentioned (in lakhs)

 Cash and cash 
equivalents

Trade 
receivables

Trade 
payables

Foreign 
currency loans

Net Balance 
Sheet exposure

USD  -  12  (1)  (20)  (9)

 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2020 was as follows:

 All amounts in respective currencies as mentioned (in lakhs)

 Cash and cash 
equivalents

Trade 
receivables

Trade 
payables

Foreign 
currency loans

Net Balance 
Sheet exposure

USD  -  -  -  -  - 

A 10% strengthening of the rupee against the respective currencies as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 
would have increased / (decreased) other comprehensive income and profit or loss by the amounts shown 
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

 Other 
comprehensive 

income

Profit/(loss)

March 31, 2021  -  64 

March 31, 2020  -  - 

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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A 10% weakening of the rupee against the above currencies as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 would 
have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis 
that all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in interest rates would adversely affect the borrowing 
costs of the Company.

Profile
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest –bearing financial instruments were 
as follows:

Carrying amount
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
 - Fixed deposits with banks  655  475 
Financial liabilities
 - Borrowings from banks  -  - 
 - Borrowings from others  294 -
Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities
 - Borrowings from banks  35,628  - 
 - Bank overdrafts  173  - 

Fair value sensitivity for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss, and the Company does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under 
a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not 
affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments
An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. 

 Equity Profit or (loss)

March 31, 2021  -  (278)

March 31, 2020  -  - 

A decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have had equal but opposite 
effect on the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variable remain constant.

36. BUSINESS ACQUISITION
  Pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement (‘BTA’) entered on January 28, 2021 the Company  acquired 

Data Center services business from its holding company Sify Technologies Limited with the appointed date 
being April 01, 2020. All the assets and liabilities relating to Data Center services business have been 
transferred at the book value from the appointed date of April 2020. The consideration is settled by way of 
issue of equity shares at par. 

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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The carrying amount of assets and liabilities transferred is as follows:

As at 
 01 April, 2020

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment  62,083 
 (b) Right-of-use Assets  15,822 
 (c) Capital work in progress  8,652 
 (d) Intangible assets   134 
 (e) Financial assets
  (i) Investments  17 
  (ii) Other financial assets  1,168 
 (f) Other non-current assets  4,112 

 91,988 
(2) Current assets
 (a) Financial assets
  (i) Trade receivables  13,183 
  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents  4,501 
  (iii) Other financial assets  854 
 (b) Other current assets  605 

 19,143 

 Total Assets  1,11,131 
LIABILITIES
(1) Non - current liabilities
 (a) Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings & Lease liabilities  27,152 
 (b) Provisions  82 

27,234
(2) Current liabilities
 (a) Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings  4,064 
  (ii) Trade payables
   Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises  - 
    Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises
 9,998 

  (iii) Other financial liabilities  18,234 
 (b) Other current liabilities  1,596 
 (c) Provisions  5 

  33,897 

Total Liabilities  61,131 

Excess of Assets over Liabilities  50,000 
Represented by
Shareholder's Funds
Equity Share Capital  50,000 

The consideration payable for acquisition of Data Center service business was discharged by the Company 
through issue of 50,00,00,000 equity shares of ` 10 each at par, as fully paid-up.

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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37. CONTRACT BALANCES

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from 
the contracts with the customers

Particulars March 31, 2021

Trade Receivables  18,788 

Contract liabilities – Deferred Income  1,234 

The following table provides the movement in contract liabilities (Deferred Income) for the year ended 
March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2021

Balance as of April 1, 2020  - 

Add: Transferred through BTA 1,466

Less: Revenue recognized during the year 52,819

Add: Invoiced during the year but revenue not recognised 52,587

Balance as of March 31, 2021 1,234

38. DUES TO MICRO, SMALL OR MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

As per the Office memorandum issued by the Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises dated August 
26, 2008 recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with 
its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in 
accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (‘the Act’). Accordingly, 
the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 
2020 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the 
Company. As the records available with the company, there are no dues payable to micro, small and medium 
enterprises as on March 31, 2021 (Previous year - Nil). The Company has not received any claim for interest 
from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a.  the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 

unpaid at the end of accounting year
 -  - 

b.  the amount of interest paid by the buyer beyond the 
appointed day during the accounting year

 -  - 

c.  the amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding 
the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 -  - 

d.  the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of the accounting year

 -  - 

e.  the amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure 
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.

 -  - 

39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s capital comprises equity share capital, share premium, retained earnings and other equity 
attributable to equity holders. The primary objective of Company’s capital management is to maximise 
shareholders value. The Company manages its capital and makes adjustment to it in light of the changes 
in economic and market conditions. The Company does so by adjusting dividend paid to shareholders. The 
total capital as on March 31, 2021 is ` 58,360 (Previous Year: ` 484).

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. 
Net debt comprises of long term and short term borrowings less cash and bank balances. Equity includes 
equity share capital and reserves that are managed as capital. The gearing at the end of the reporting 
period was as follows:

As at

March 31, 2021      March 31, 2020

Debt  36,095  - 

Less: cash and bank balances  (1,223)  (515)

Net debt A  34,872  - 

  

Equity B  58,360  484 

  

Net debt to Equity ratio A/B 60% 0%

As per our report of even date attached.

for ASA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009571N/N500006

D K Giridharan C R Rao Raju Vegesna
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 028738

Chennai V Ramanujan   D J Poornasandar 
May 14, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(All amounts are in Indian ` lakhs except share data and as stated)
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